

LEE ONLINE

SYLLABUS

PASM-353: Contemporary World Religions

Date: 05/31/2016

Table of Contents:	
UNIVERSITY MISSION STATEMENT:	3
CATALOG DESCRIPTION:	3
REQUIRED TEXT(S) AND/OR SUPPORTING RESOURCES:	3
PREREQUISITE SKILLS AND KNOWLEDGE:	3
COURSE GOALS AND LEARNING OUTCOMES:	3
MAJOR TOPICS:	4
COURSE ASSESSMENTS:	4
EVALUATION:	4
GRADING SCALE:	5
LETTER GRADE EQUIVALENCIES:	5
UNIT AND TIME DISTRIBUTION:	5
POLICIES	6
ATTENDANCE POLICY:	6
ACADEMIC HONESTY POLICY/INFORMATION:	6
LATE POLICY:	6
EXPECTATIONS	7
FACULTY EXPECTATIONS OF STUDENTS:	7
STUDENTS' EXPECTATIONS OF FACULTY:	7
IMPORTANT STUDENT INFORMATION	8
SPECIAL NEEDS:	8
BIBLIOGRAPHY	8
KNOWLEDGE BASE/WORKING BIBLIOGRAPHY (READING LIST):	8

University Mission Statement:

Lee University is a Christian institution which offers liberal arts and professional education on both the undergraduate and graduate levels through residential and distance programs. It seeks to provide education that integrates biblical truth as revealed in the Holy Scriptures with truth discovered through the study of arts and sciences and in the practice of various professions. A personal commitment to Jesus Christ as Savior is the controlling perspective from which the educational enterprise is carried out. The foundational purpose of all educational programs is to develop within the students knowledge, appreciation, understanding, ability and skills which will prepare them for responsible Christian living in a complex world.

Catalog Description:

This course is a study of the history and teachings of the major non-Christian religions of the world with an attempt to relate them to their cultural background.

Required Text(s) and/or Supporting Resources:

Required Text:

Molloy, Michael. Experiencing the World's Religions: Tradition, Challenge, and Change. 6th ed. New York: McGraw Hill, 2010. [Provided as a link in the course and charged to your Lee account as "Book Bundle" fee.]

Sheik, Bilquis & Richard H. Schneider. I Dared to Call Him Father: The Miraculous Story of a Muslim Woman's Encounter with God. Grand Rapids: Chosen, 2003. [Provided as a link in the course and charged to your Lee account as "Book Bundle" fee.]

Additional Supporting Resources:

Resources included in the Learning Management System (LMS).

Prerequisite Skills and Knowledge:

None

Course Goals and Learning Outcomes:

PURPOSE

General Learning Objectives (Course Goals):

This course seeks to:

- 1. Bring to the student's awareness the religiously plural nature of today's global world.
- 2. Show students how to view other religions phenomenologically.
- 3. Teach students the basic tenets of other religious faiths.
- 4. Understand the culture and context out of which the world's religions emerge.
- 5. Bring to the student's attention the history, literature and thoughts of the world's religions.
- 6. Assist students with a theoretical framework to contrast different religions.
- 7. Develop a seeker sensitive approach to presenting the Gospel of Jesus Christ to people of other religious faiths.

Specific Behavioral Objectives (*Learning Outcomes*):

As a result of the activities and study in this course, the student should be able to:

- 1. Demonstrate a clear understanding of the history, beliefs and practices of other religious faiths.
- 2. Assess other religious traditions through the eyes of a phenomenologist before critiquing other religions.
- 3. Distinguish cultural from religious entities in any given tradition.
- 4. Construct strategies of presenting the Christian Gospel to any of the world's religions studied.
- 5. Develop a keen sense of God's work in the world through the power of the Holy Spirit, thus showing respect and tolerance for people who do not share Christian beliefs.
- 6. Dialogue with people of other faiths.

Major Topics:

- A. Understanding Religion
- B. Oral Religions
- C. Origins, beliefs and practices of the major contemporary World religions
- D. Learning to view other religions phenomenologically
- E. Learning to understand other religions theologically
- F. The coalescence and or separation of religion and culture
- G. God's perspective of the world
- H. The Christian's attitude towards other religions

Course Assessments:

- A. **Text/Media.** All text/media is evaluated in the threaded discussions and assignments.
- B. Threaded Discussions. The threaded discussions are an opportunity for students to demonstrate their knowledge of the course material and interact with fellow students. Just doing an initial post and/or response will not guarantee any point value. Discussions will be evaluated as follows: a) on the depth of engagement with the discussion topic and/or issue; b) on the depth of understanding of the topic and/or issue; and c) on the depth of interaction with the other students. An initial post is required (evaluation of "a" and "b" above) and then response posts interacting to other students' initial posts (evaluation of "c" above). Once the discussion deadline is reached, there will be no further opportunity to attain points for that discussion. If you have further questions on how these are evaluated, please contact your instructor.
- C. **Unit Assignment (Case Study)**: One case study will be selected for this course. The case study method of teaching is designed to apply theoretical principles to real-to-life situations, thus requiring the learner to bring his/her critical thinking skills to bear on the subject at hand.
- D. **Course Project (Book Review):** Students will be required to write a critical reflection on the prescribed text *I Dared to Call Him Father: The Miraculous Story of a Muslim Woman's Encounter with God*
- E. Course Projects (Papers): Students will write three 3-5 page papers throughout the course. .

Evaluation:

A.	Threaded Discussions	300
В.	Unit Assignment	150
C.	Course Projects	550

Grading Scale:

The standardized grading scale provides a uniform foundation from which to assess your performance.

Grade	Quality Points per Credit	Score
А	4.0	930 - 1000
A-	3.7	900 - 929
B+	3.3	870 - 899
В	3.0	830 – 869
B-	2.7	800 – 829
C+	2.3	770 – 799
С	2.0	730 – 769
C-	1.7	700 – 729
D+	1.3	670 – 699
D	1.0	600 – 669
F	.0	0 - 599

Letter Grade Equivalencies:

- A = Clearly stands out as excellent performance. Has unusually sharp insights into material and initiates thoughtful questions. Sees many sides of an issue. Articulates well and writes logically and clearly. Integrates ideas previously learned from this and other disciplines. Anticipates next steps in progression of ideas. Example "A" work should be of such nature that it could be put on reserve for all cohort members to review and emulate. The "A" cohort member is, in fact, an example for others to follow.
- **B** = Demonstrates a solid comprehension of the subject matter and always accomplishes all course requirements. Serves as an active participant and listener. Communicates orally and in writing at an acceptable level for a cohort member. Work shows intuition and creativity. Example "B" work indicates good quality of performance and is given in recognition for solid work; a "B" should be considered a good grade and awarded to those who submit assignments of quality less than the exemplary work described above.
- **C** = Quality and quantity of work in and out of class is average. Has average comprehension, communication skills, or initiative. Requirements of the assignments are addressed at least minimally.
- **D** = Quality and quantity of work is below average. Has marginal comprehension, communication skills, or initiative. Requirements of the assignments are addressed at below acceptable levels.
- **F** = Quality and quantity of work is unacceptable and does not qualify the student to progress to a more advanced level of work.

Unit and Time Distribution:

The time to complete each unit is approximately 14-16 hours per week on average for a three hour course. Actual assignment completion times will vary. A more detailed breakdown of each assignment can be found within the course.

POLICIES

Attendance Policy:

At Lee University student success is directly related to the student actively attending and engaging in the course. Online courses are no different from classroom courses in this regard; however, participation must be defined in a different manner.

Online courses will have weekly mechanisms for student participation, which can be documented by submission/completion of assignments, participation in threaded discussions, and/or specific communication with the instructor as outlined within the syllabus.

Academic Honesty Policy/Information:

Cheating is defined as the use or attempted use of unauthorized materials or receiving unauthorized assistance or communication during any academic exercise.

Examples of cheating include:

- Submitting work for academic evaluation that is not the your own.
- Receiving assistance from another person during an examination.
- Using prepared notes or materials during an examination.
- Permitting another student to copy your work.
- Plagiarism.
- Falsification.
- Other misrepresentations of academic achievement submitted for evaluation or a grade.

As stated in the LEE UNIVERSITY Catalog, plagiarism is presenting as your own work the words, ideas, opinions, theories, or thoughts which are not common knowledge. Students who present others' words or ideas as their own without fair attribution (documentation) are guilty of plagiarizing. Unfair attribution includes, but is not limited to, a direct quotation of all or part of another's words without appropriately identifying the source. It is also unfair attribution to have included a source within a Works Cited page without having carefully cited the source within the text of the document. Plagiarism also includes, but is not limited to, the following acts when performed without fair attribution:

- a. directly quoting all or part of another person's words without quotation marks, as appropriate to the discipline.
- b. paraphrasing all or part of another person's words without documentation.
- c. stating an idea, theory, or formula as your own when it actually originated with another person.
- d. purchasing (or receiving in any other manner) a term paper or other assignment, which is the work of another person, and submitting that work as if it were one's own.

Late Policy:

- No credit is available for postings of any kind made in the Threaded Discussions after a given Unit ends.
- If your faculty approves your submission of late assignments, each assignment score will be penalized 10% per day up to five days late. After the fifth day, late assignments will not be

- accepted. (Note: An assignment is a paper, a project, a team presentation, etc., **not** a discussion)
- No late assignments will be accepted after the close of the final Unit.

EXPECTATIONS

Faculty Expectations of Students:

- Have consistent access to a computer and possess baseline computer and information skills prior to taking online courses.
- Log into their courses within 24 hours of the beginning of the session to confirm their participation. (Students who register after the session has begun will be responsible for any assignments or material already covered.)
- Take an active role in each unit, participating fully in discussions, assignments and other activities throughout the entire session. If some event interferes with that participation, the student is responsible for notifying the instructor in advance.
- Review the course syllabus and other preliminary course materials thoroughly as early as possible during the first few days of the course.
- Be responsible for raising any questions or seeking clarification about these materials, if necessary, within the first week of the session.
- Frequently check the course calendar for due dates.
- Submit assignments and papers on time, and take tests by the posted dates. Acceptance of late work and any penalties for late submissions are up to the discretion of the instructor, based on the expectations outlined in the course syllabus.
- Contribute meaningful, timely comments to online discussions according to guidelines provided.
- Contribute substantively to group assignments (if required in course).
- Check for University announcements each time you log onto the LMS. These postings are critical.
- Use Lee email address.
- Complete the "Student Survey of Instruction" for each course to evaluate the instructor and the course.

Students' Expectations of Faculty:

- The opportunity to be active participants in a stimulating and challenging education that is global in scope, interactive in process and diverse in content and approach.
- A friendly, respectful, open, and encouraging learning environment.
- A course outline or syllabus that clearly provides information regarding course content, teaching methods, course objectives, grading, attendance/participation policies, due dates, and student assessment guidelines.
- Instructors who are responsive and available to discuss within 48 hours students' progress, course content, assignments, etc. at mutually convenient times from the first day of the session through the last day of the session. (Check the faculty contact information regarding weekends and holidays.)

- Individual instructor's contact information, schedules, availability, and procedural details are located within the course.
- To have access to instructor feedback and grading on projects, exams, papers, quizzes, etc., within ten (10) days of assignment due date so students are able to determine where they have made errors or need additional work.
- Final grade/feedback provided within ten (10) days after the last date of course.

IMPORTANT STUDENT INFORMATION

Special Needs:

Lee University, in conjunction with the Academic Support Office, works to ensure students with documented disabilities have access to educational opportunities. Students who need accommodations based on a disability should visit the Academic Support Office, call (423) 614-8181, or email academicsupport@leeuniversity.edu. It is the student's responsibility to share the Accommodations Form with the instructor in order to initiate the accommodations.

BIBLIOGRAPHY

Knowledge Base/Working Bibliography (Reading List):

Alexander, George P. Higher Education in India: Critical Issues & Trends. Gardena: P & P Publishers,

Anderson, Sir Norman. Christianity and World Religions: The Challenge of Pluralism. Leicester: InterVarsity Press, 1984.

Bamat, Thomas and Jean-Paul Wiest, eds. Popular Catholicism in a World Church. Maryknoll: Orbis Books, 1999.

Bavinck, J. H. The Church Between the Temple and Mosque: A Study of the Relationship Between the Christian Faith and Other Religions. Grand Rapids: William B. Eerdmans Publishing Co.

Beaver, R. Pierce, Dr. Jan Bergman, et al. Eerdman's Handbook to The World's Religions. Grand Rapids: William B. Eerdmans Publishing Company, 1994.

Bercholz, Samuel and Serab Chodzin Kohn, eds. An Introduction to the Buddha and His Teachings. New York: Barnes & Noble Books, 1997.

Berling, Judith A. Understanding Other Religious Worlds: A Guide for Interreligious Education. Maryknoll: Orbis Books, 2004.

Berthrong, John and Evelyn. Confucianism: A Short Introduction. Oxford: OneWorld, 2000.

Best, Elsdon. Maori Religion and Mythology Part 1. Wellington, New Zealand: Te Papa Press, 2005.

Bhagavad-Gita. Los Angeles: The Bhaktivedanta Book Trust, 1984.

Braswell Jr., George W. Understanding World Religions: A Christian Perspective. Nashville: Broadman Press, 1983.

Brown, Judith M. and Robert Eric Frykenberg, eds. Christians, Cultural Interactions, and India's Religious Traditions. Grand Rapids: William B. Eerdmans Publishing Company, 2002.

Buber, Martin. A Land of Two Peoples: Martin Buber on Jews and Arabs. New York: Oxford University Press, 1983.

Buddhist-Christian Studies, Volume 23, 2003.

Burnett, David. Clash of Worlds: A Christian's Handbook on Cultures, World Religions, and Evangelism. Nashville: Oliver Nelson, 1990.

Cassidy, Cardinal Edward I. John Paul II and Interreligious Dialogue. Maryknoll: Orbis Books, 1999.

Chang, Shin Jin. The Tao of Jesus. Paulist Press, 1998. [Joseph A Loya, OSA Wan-Liho]

Chapman, Colin. Cross and Crescent: Responding to the Challenge of Islam. Inter-Varsity Press, 1995.

Clarke, Andrew D. and Bruce W. Winter, eds. One God One Lord: In a World of Religious Pluralism. Cambridge: Tyndale House, 1991.

Clooney, Francix X. Hindu Wisdom for All God's Children. Maryknoll: Orbis Books, 1998.

Conze, Edward. Buddhism: A Short History. Oxford: OneWorld, 2000.

Conze, Edward. Buddhist Texts Through the Ages. Oxford: OneWorld, 1995.

Cornille, Chaterine and Valeer Neckebrouch, eds. A Universal Faith? Peoples, Cultures, Religions, and the Christ. Louvain: Peters Press.

Coward, Harold, ed. Experiencing Scripture in World Religions. Maryknoll: Orbis Books, 2000.

Coward, Harold, ed. Life After Death in World Religions. Maryknoll: Orbis Books, 1997.

Coward, Harold G. Pluralism in the World Religions. Oxford: OneWorld, 2000.

Coward, Harold G. Scripture in the World Religions. Oxford: OneWorld, 2001.

Cragg, Kenneth. The House of Islam: The Religious Life of Man Series. Encino: Dickenson Publishing Company, 1975.

Cragg, Kenneth and Marston Speight. Islam from Within: Anthology of a Religion. Belmont: Wadsworth Publishing Company, 1980.

Crim, Keith. ed. The Perennial Dictionary of World Religions. San Francisco: Harper San Francisco, 1981.

Deal, William E. and Timothy K. Beal. Theory for Religious Studies. New York: Routledge, 2004.

Denny, Frederick Mathewson. An Introduction to Islam. New York: Macmillan Publishing Company, 1994.

Dietrich, Walter and Ulrich Luz, eds. The Bible in a World Context. Grand Rapids: William B. Eerdmans Publishing Company, 2002.

Eliade, Mircea. The Quest: History and Meaning in Religion. Chicago: The University of Chicago Press, 1969

Eliade, Mircea. The Sacred and the Profane: The Nature of Religion. New York: Harcourt, Brace, and World, Inc., 1959.

Ellwood Jr., Robert S. Introducing Religion From Inside and Outside. Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey: Prentice-Hall, Inc., 1978.

Elsmore, Bronwyn. Like Them That Dream: The Maori and the Old Testament. New Zealand: Reed Publishing, 2000.

Esposito, John L., Darrell J. Fasching, and Todd Lewis. World Religions Today. New York: Oxford University Press, 2006.

Ethics in the World Religions. Edited by Nancy M. Martin and Joseph Runzo. Oxford: OneWorld, 2001. Fairbairn, Donald. Eastern Orthodoxy Through Western Eyes. Louisville: Westminster John Knox Press, 2002.

Fakhry, Majid. Islamic Philosophy, Theology, and Mysticism. Oxford: OneWorld, 2000.

Fieser, James and John Powers, eds. Scriptures of the World's Religions. Boston: McGraw Hill, 2004.

Fisher, Mary Pat. Living Religions. Upper Saddle River, New Jersey: Prentice Hall, 2002.

Fredericks, James L. Buddhists and Christians: Through Comparative Theology to Solidarity. Maryknoll: Orbis Books, 2004.

Gamley, Anthony M. Denis Hurley: A Portrait by Friends. Pietermartizburg, South Africa: Cluster Publications, 2002.

Geisler, Norman L. and Abdul Saleeb. Answering Islam: The Crescent in the Light of the Cross. Grand Rapids: Baker Books, 1993.

George, Timothy. Is the Father of Jesus the God of Muhammad? Grand Rapids: Zondervan, 2002.

Grimes, Ronald L. Beginnings in Ritual Studies. Columbia: University of South Carolina Press, 1995.

Gyatso, Tenzin. The World of Tibetan Buddhism. Somerville: Wisdom Publications, 1995.

Haneef, Suzanne. Islam: The Path of God. South Elgin: Library of Islam, 1996.

Haneef, Suzane. What Everyone Should Know About Islam and Muslims. South Elgin: Library of Islam, 1995.

Harris, Elizabeth J. What Buddhists Believe. Oxford: OneWorld, 1998.

Harris, Stephen L. Understanding the Bible. 7th Ed. Boston: McGraw Hill, 2007.

Heim, S. Mark. Salvations: Truth and Difference in Religion. Maryknoll: 1995.

Hick, John and Brian Hebblethwaite, eds. Christianity and Other Religions: Selected Readings. Oxford: Oneworld Publications, 2001.

Hopfe, Lewis M. Religions of the World. Encino: Glencoe Publishing Co, Inc, 1979.

Huff, Margaret C. and Ann K. Wetherilt. Religion: A Search for Meaning. Boston: McGraw Hill, 2005.

Ibrahim, I. A Brief Illustrated Guide to Understanding Islam. Houston: Darussalam Publishers and Distributors, 1997.

Irwin, David K. What Christian Need to Know About Muslims. Springfield: Center for Ministry to Muslims, 1987.

Judd, Daniel K. Taking Sides: Clashing Views on Controversial Issues in Religion. Guilford: McGraw-Hill/Dushkin, 2003.

Jurji, Edward J. The Great Religions of the Modern World. Princeton: Princeton University Press, 1967.

Kateregga, Badru D. and David W. Shenk. A Muslim and a Christian in Dialogue. Scottdale: Herald Press, 1997.

Kays, A. Selected Stories from the Quran. Althlone, South Africa: Al-Khaleel Publication, 1992.

Kennedy, Richard. The International Dictionary of Religion. New York: Crossroad, 1984.

Kessler, Gary E. Studying Religion: An Introduction Through Cases. Boston: McGraw Hill, 2003.

Kessler, Gary E. Ways of Being Religious. Mountain View: Mayfield Publishing Company, 2000.

Kingsriter, Del. Questions Muslims Ask: That Need to be Answered. Springfield: Center for Ministry to Muslims (CMM), 1991.

Klostermaier, Klaus K. A Concise Encyclopedia of Hinduism. Oxford: OneWorld, 1998.

Klostermaier, Klaus K. Buddhism: A Short Introduction. Oxford: OneWorld, 2000.

Klostermaier, Klaus K. Hinduism: A Short Introduction. Oxford: OneWorld, 2000.

Klostermaier, Klaus K. Hindu Writings: A Short Introduction. Oxford: OneWorld, 2000.

Knipe, David M. Hinduism: Experiments in the Sacred. Prospect Heights: Waveland Pres Inc, 1991.

Knitter, Paul F. No Other Name?: A Critical Survey of Christian Attitudes Toward the World Religions. London: SCM Press Ltd., 1985.

Knitter, Paul F. One Earth Many Religions: Multifaith Dialogue & Global Responsibility. Maryknoll: Orbis Books, 1995.

Kulanoanda. Thorsons Principles of Buddhism. London: Thorsons, 1996.

Kung, Hans. Infallible? London: William Collins Sons & Co Ltd., 1971.

Kunin, Seth D., ed. Theories of Religion: A Reader. New Brunswick: Rutgers University Press, 2006. Lanternari, Vittorio. The Religions of the Oppressed: A Study of Modern Messianic Cults. New York: Mentor Books, 1963.

Lester, Robert C. Buddhism: The Path to Nirvana. Prospect Heights: Waveland Press, 1987.

Lewis, I. M. Ecstatic Religion: An Anthropological Study of Spirit Possession and Shamanism. Great Britain: Penguin Books, 1971.

Lings, Martin. Muhammad: His Life Based on the Earliest Sources. Rochester: Inner Traditions International, 1983.

Livingstone, Greg. Planting Churches in Muslim Cities: A Team Approach. Grand Rapids: Baker Book House, 1993.

Lohn-Sherbok, Dan. A Concise Encyclopedia of Judaism. Oxford: OneWorld, 1998.

Lohn-Sherbok, Dan and Lavinia. Judaism: A Short History. Oxford: OneWorld, 1999.

Lohn-Sherbok, Dan and Lavinia. Judaism: A Short Introduction. Oxford: OneWorld, 1999.

Love, Rick. Muslims, Magic and the Kingdom of God. Pasadena: William Carey Library, 2000.

Lyden, John. Enduring Issues in Religion. San Diego: Greenhaven Press, 1995.

Macquarrie, John. In Search of Deity: An Essay in Dialectical Theism. London: SCM Press Ltd., 1984.

Magesa, Laurenti. African Religion: The Moral Traditions of Abundant Life. Maryknoll: Orbis Books, 2002.

Maharaj, Rabi R. Death of a Guru: A Remarkable True Story of One Man's Search for Truth. Eugene: Harvest House Publishers, 1984.

Marslow, Abraham H. Religions, Values, and Peak-Experiences. New York: The Viking Press, 1970.

Mascaro, Juan, translator. The Dhammapada. England: Penguin Books, 1973.

Matthews, Warren. World Religions. Australia: Thompson Wadsworth, 2007.

McAmis, Robert Day. Malay Muslims: The History and Challenge of Resurgent Islam in Southeast Asia. Grand Rapids: William B. Eerdmans Publishing Company, 2002.

McDowell, Josh and Don Stewart. Understanding Secular Religions: Handbook of Today's Religions. San Bernardino: Here's Life Publishers, Inc., 1982.

McKenzie, Peter. The Christians: Their Beliefs and Practices. Nashville: Abingdon Press, 1988.

Meaning of Life in the World Religions. Edited by Joseph Runzo. Oxford: OneWorld, 2000.

Milne, Bruce. The Message of Heaven and Hell. Downers Grove, IL: InterVarsity Press, 2002.

Momen, Moojan. The Phenomenon of Religion. Oxford: OneWorld, 1999.

Moucarry, Chawkat Georges. Islam and Christianity at the Crossroads. England: Lion Publishing, 1988.

Muck, Terry C. and Rita M. Gross, eds. Buddhist-Christian Studies. Vol 23. Hawaii: University of Hawai'i, 2003.

Musk, Bill. The Unseen Face of Islam: Sharing the Gospel with Ordinary Muslims. MARC, 1984.

Neihardt, John G. and Nicholas Black Elk. Black Elk Speaks. Lincoln: University of Nebraska Press, 2000.

Neill, Stephen. Christian Faith and Other Faiths. Downers Grove: InterVarsity Press, 1984.

Neusner, Jacob. The Way of Torah: An Introduction. Belmont: Wadsworth Publishing Company, 1993.

Noss, David S. A History of the World's Religions. Upper Saddle River: Prentice-Hall, 1999.

Olupona, Jacob K. ed. African Traditional Religions in Contemporary Society. St. Paul: Paragon House, 1991.

Park, Chris C. Sacred Worlds: An Introduction to Geography and Religion. London: Routledge, 1994. Partridge, Christopher, ed. Introduction to World Religions. Minneapolis: Fortress Press, 2005.

Partridge, Christopher and Douglas Groothuis, eds. Dictionary of Contemporary World Religions in the Western World: Exploring Living Faiths in Postmodern Contexts. Leicester: InterVarsity Press, 2002.

Peacocke, Arthur Robert. Paths from Science Toward God. Oxford: OneWorld, 2001.

Peck, Ron. The Shadow of the Crescent: The Growth of Islam in the U.S. Springfield: Center for Ministry to Muslims, 1995.

Peters, F.E. The Monotheists: Jews, Christians, and Muslims in Conflict and Competition, v 1 The Peoples of God. Princeton: Princeton University Press, 2003.

Peters, F.E. The Monotheists: Jews, Christians, and Muslims in Conflict and Competition, v 2 The Words and Will of God. Princeton: Princeton University Press, 2003.

Pieris, Aloysius. Fire & Water: Basic Issues in Asian Buddhism and Christianity. Maryknoll: Orbis Books, 1996.

Porterfield, Amanda. The Power of Religion: A Comparative Introduction. New York: Oxford University Press, 1998.

Powers, John. Concise Encyclopedia of Buddhism. Oxford: OneWorld, 2000.

Prabhu, Joseph, ed. The Intercultural Challenge of Raimon Panikkar. Maryknoll: Orbis Books, 1996.

Prabhupada, A.C. Bhaktivedanta Swami. Dharma: The Way of Transcendence. Los Angeles: The Bhaktivedanta Book Trust, 1998.

Rausch, David A. and Carl Herman Voss. World Religions: Our Quest for Meaning. Minneapolis: Fortress Press, 1989.

Ray, Benjamin C. African Religions: Symbol, Ritual, and Community. Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey: Prentice-Hall, 1976.

Reichley, A. James. Religion in American Public Life. Washington: The Brooking Institution, 1985.

Renard, John. 101 Questions and Answers on Islam. New York: Gramercy Books, 2002.

Richter, Kent E., Eva M. Rapple, John C. Modschiedler, and R. Dean Peterson. Understanding Religion in Global Society. Belmont: Thomson Wadsworth, 2005.

Ring, Nancy C., Kathleen S. Nash, et al. Introduction to the Study of Religion. Maryknoll: Orbis Books, 1998.

Runzo, Joseph. Global Philosophy of Religion. Oxford: OneWorld, 2001.

Ryan, Patrick J. Imale: Yoruba Participation in the Muslim Tradition. Missoula: Scholars Press, 1978.

Sanneh, Lamin. Piety & Power: Muslims and Christians in West Africa. Maryknoll: Orbis Books, 1996.

Satin, Mark. New Age Politics: Healing Self and Society. New York: Dell Publishing Co., 1979.

Schimmel, Annemarie. Deciphering the Signs of God: A Phenomenological Approach to Islam. New York: The State University of New York Press, 1994.

Seelye, H. Ned, ed. Experiential Activities for Intercultural Learning. Yarmouth: Intercultural Press, Inc., 1996.

Sherwood, Yvonne and Kevin Hart, eds. Derrida and Religion: Other Testaments. New York: Routledge, 2005.

Shreve, Mike. In Search of the True Light. Cleveland: Pivotal Publications, 2002.

Smart, Ninian. The Philosophy of Religion. London: Sheldon Press, 1979.

Smart, Ninian. The Religious Experience. New York: Macmillan Publishing Company, 1991.

Smith, Huston. The Religions of Man. New York: Harper and Row Publishers, 1958.

Smith, James Ward and A. Leland Jamison, eds. The Shaping of American Religion. Princeton: Princeton University Press, 1961.

Smith, Peter. Concise Encyclopedia of the Bahai Faith. Oxford: OneWorld, 1999.

Smith, Wilfred Cantwell. Patterns of Faith Around the World. Oxford: OneWorld, 1998.

Sonsino, Rifat and Daniel B. Syme. Finding God: Ten Jewish Responses. USA: Union of American Hebrew Congregations, 1986.

Stackhouse, John G, ed. No Other Gods Before Me? Evangelicals and the Challenge of World Religions. Regent: Baker Academic, 2001.

Stahmer, Harold, ed. Religion & Contemporary Society. New York: The Macmillan Company, 1963.

Stark, Rodney. Religious Movements: Genesis, Exodus, and Numbers. New York: Paragon House Publishers, 1985.

Starkes, M. Thomas. Today's World Religions. New Orleans: Insight Press, 1978.

Stassen, Glen H. Kingdom Ethics. Downers Grove: InterVarsity Press, 2003.

Tayob, Abdulkader. Islam: A Short Introduction. Oxford: OneWorld, 1999.

Tennent, Timothy C. Christianity at the Religious Roundtable: Evangelicalism in Conversation with Hinduism, Buddhism, and Islam. Grand Rapids: Baker Academic, 2002.

Thomsen, Mark W. The Word and the Way of the Cross: Christian Witness Among Muslim and Buddhist People. Chicago: Division for Global Mission Evangelical Lutheran Church in America, 1993.

Towards a Theology for Inter-Faith Dialogue. London: Church House Publishing, 1986.

Tucker, Ruth. Another Gospel. Grand Rapids: Zondervan, 1989.

Turner, Frederick, ed. The Portable North American Indian Reader. New York: Penguin Books, 1977.

Turner, Victor. Revelation and Divination in Ndembu Ritual. London: Cornell University Press Ltd., 1975.

Turner, Victor W. The Ritual Process: Structure and Anti-Structure. Hawthorne: Aldine De Gruyter, 1995.

Understanding Islam and the Muslims. Prepared by The Islamic Affairs Department, The Embassy of Saudi Arabia in Washington DC.

Voorst, Robert E. Van. Anthology of World Scriptures: Eastern Religions. Australia: Thompson Wadsworth, 2007.

Voorst, Robert E. Van. Anthology of World Scriptures: Western Religions. Australia: Thompson Wadsworth, 2007.

Waardenburg, Jacques. Classical Approaches to the Study of Religion: Aims, Methods and Theories of Research Introduction and Anthology. New York: Walter de Gruyter, 1999.

Ward, Keith. Christianity: A Short Introduction. Oxford: OneWorld, 2000.

Ward, Keith. God, Chance, and Necessity. Oxford: OneWorld, 1996.

Watt, William. Islam: A Short History. Oxford: OneWorld, 1999.

Winter, Ralph D. and Steven C. Hawthrone, eds. Perspectives on the World Christian Movement. Pasadena: William Carey Library, 1999.

Wolfe, Regina Wentzel and Christine E. Gudorf, eds. Ethics and World Religions: Cross-Cultural Case Studies. Maryknoll: Orbis Books, 1999.

Woodbury, J. Dudley, ed. Muslims and Christians on the Emmaus Road. Monrovia: MARC, 1989.

Zacharias, Ravi. Light in the Shadow of Jihad: The Struggle for Truth. Sisters: Multomah Pulblishers, 2002.